

SENATE BILL No. 228

DIGEST OF INTRODUCED BILL

Citations Affected: IC 9-13-2; IC 9-14; IC 9-21-11-12; IC 9-24; IC 9-25-7-3; IC 9-26-1; IC 9-30; IC 35-52-9.

Synopsis: Driving cards. Provides for the issuance of driving cards and driving card learner's permits (cards) to residents of Indiana who cannot provide proof of identity and lawful status in the United States. Provides that cards may not be used for federal identification or any federal purposes. Requires that an individual who holds a card and operates a motor vehicle must verify that financial responsibility on any motor vehicle that the holder operates is continuously maintained in the amounts required by law. Makes conforming amendments. Makes technical corrections.

Effective: Upon passage; July 1, 2018.

Niezgodski

January 3, 2018, read first time and referred to Committee on Homeland Security and Transportation.



Second Regular Session 120th General Assembly (2018)

PRINTING CODE. Amendments: Whenever an existing statute (or a section of the Indiana Constitution) is being amended, the text of the existing provision will appear in this style type, additions will appear in **this style type**, and deletions will appear in ~~this style type~~.

Additions: Whenever a new statutory provision is being enacted (or a new constitutional provision adopted), the text of the new provision will appear in **this style type**. Also, the word **NEW** will appear in that style type in the introductory clause of each SECTION that adds a new provision to the Indiana Code or the Indiana Constitution.

Conflict reconciliation: Text in a statute in *this style type* or ~~this style type~~ reconciles conflicts between statutes enacted by the 2017 Regular Session of the General Assembly.

SENATE BILL No. 228

A BILL FOR AN ACT to amend the Indiana Code concerning motor vehicles.

Be it enacted by the General Assembly of the State of Indiana:

1 SECTION 1. IC 9-13-2-39.7, AS ADDED BY P.L.198-2016,
2 SECTION 101, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
3 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 39.7. "Credential" means the
4 following forms of documentation issued by the bureau under IC 9-24:

- 5 (1) A driver's license.
6 (2) A learner's permit.
7 (3) An identification card.
8 (4) A photo exempt identification card.
9 (5) **A driving card.**
10 (6) **A driving card learner's permit.**

11 SECTION 2. IC 9-13-2-41 IS AMENDED TO READ AS
12 FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 41. "Current driving
13 license" means every class and kind of license or permit, **other than a**
14 **driving card or a driving card learner's permit**, that evidences the
15 privilege to operate a motor vehicle upon the highways of Indiana. The
16 term includes a privilege granted by the license.

17 SECTION 3. IC 9-13-2-48, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,



1 SECTION 104, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 2 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 48. (a) "Driver's license" means any
 3 type of license issued by the state authorizing an individual to operate
 4 the type of vehicle for which the license was issued, in the manner for
 5 which the license was issued, on a highway. The term includes any
 6 endorsements added to the license under IC 9-24-8.5.

7 (b) **The term does not include a driving card or a driving card**
 8 **learner's permit.**

9 SECTION 4. IC 9-13-2-93.4 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE
 10 AS A NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE JULY
 11 1, 2018]: Sec. 93.4. "Licensed driver" means an individual holding
 12 either of the following:

13 (1) A valid operator's license issued under IC 9-24-3.

14 (2) A valid driving card issued under IC 9-24-3.5.

15 SECTION 5. IC 9-13-2-123.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 16 SECTION 144, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 17 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 123.5. "Permit" means a permit
 18 issued by the state authorizing an individual to operate the type of
 19 vehicle for which the permit was issued on public streets, roads, or
 20 highways with certain restrictions. The term includes the following:

21 (1) A learner's permit.

22 (2) A motorcycle permit.

23 (3) A commercial learner's permit.

24 (4) A driving card.

25 (5) A driving card learner's permit.

26 SECTION 6. IC 9-14-6-6, AS ADDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 27 SECTION 186, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 28 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 6. "Personal information" means
 29 information that identifies an individual, including an individual's:

30 (1) digital photograph or image;

31 (2) Social Security number;

32 (3) driver's license, **driving card**, or identification document
 33 number;

34 (4) name;

35 (5) address (but not the ZIP code);

36 (6) telephone number; or

37 (7) medical or disability information.

38 The term does not include information about vehicular accidents,
 39 driving or equipment related violations, ~~and or an individual's~~ driver's
 40 license, **driving card**, or registration status.

41 SECTION 7. IC 9-14-8-3, AS ADDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 42 SECTION 188, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS



1 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 3. The bureau may do the
2 following:

3 (1) Adopt and enforce rules under IC 4-22-2 that are necessary to
4 carry out this title.

5 (2) Subject to the approval of the commission, request the
6 necessary office space, storage space, and parking facilities for
7 each license branch operated by the commission from the Indiana
8 department of administration as provided in IC 4-20.5-5-5.

9 (3) Upon any reasonable ground appearing on the records of the
10 bureau and subject to rules and guidelines of the bureau, suspend
11 or revoke the following:

12 (A) The current driving privileges or driver's license of any
13 individual.

14 (B) The certificate of registration and proof of registration for
15 any vehicle.

16 (C) The certificate of registration and proof of registration for
17 any watercraft, off-road vehicle, or snowmobile.

18 **(D) The driving card of any individual.**

19 (4) With the approval of the commission, adopt rules under
20 IC 4-22-2 to do the following:

21 (A) Increase or decrease any fee or charge imposed under this
22 title.

23 (B) Impose a fee on any other service for which a fee is not
24 imposed under this article.

25 (C) Increase or decrease a fee imposed under clause (B).

26 (D) Designate the fund or account in which a:

27 (i) fee increase under clause (A) or (C); or

28 (ii) new fee under clause (B);

29 shall be deposited.

30 SECTION 8. IC 9-21-11-12, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
31 SECTION 366, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
32 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 12. A Class B motor driven cycle
33 may not be operated under any of the following conditions:

34 (1) By an individual less than fifteen (15) years of age.

35 (2) By an individual who does not have:

36 (A) an unexpired identification card with a Class B motor
37 driven cycle endorsement issued to the individual by the
38 bureau under IC 9-24-16;

39 (B) a valid driver's license **or driving card**; or

40 (C) a valid learner's permit **or driving card learner's permit**.

41 (3) On an interstate highway or a sidewalk.

42 (4) At a speed greater than thirty-five (35) miles per hour.



1 SECTION 9. IC 9-24-1-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 2 SECTION 417, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 3 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. (a) Except as provided in section
 4 7 of this chapter, an individual must have a valid:

- 5 (1) driver's license; or
 6 (2) permit;

7 including any necessary endorsements, issued to the individual by the
 8 bureau to operate upon a highway the type of motor vehicle for which
 9 the driver's license, endorsement, or permit was issued.

10 (b) An individual must have:

- 11 (1) an unexpired identification card with a Class B motor driven
 12 cycle endorsement issued to the individual by the bureau under
 13 IC 9-24-16;
 14 (2) a valid driver's license **or driving card**; or
 15 (3) a valid learner's permit **or driving card learner's permit**;
 16 to operate a Class B motor driven cycle upon a highway.

17 (c) An individual who violates this section commits a Class C
 18 infraction.

19 SECTION 10. IC 9-24-2-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012,
 20 SECTION 166, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 21 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. (a) The bureau shall suspend the
 22 driving privileges or invalidate the learner's permit **or driving card**
 23 **learner's permit** of an individual less than eighteen (18) years of age
 24 who meets any of the following conditions:

- 25 (1) Is a habitual truant under IC 20-33-2-11.
 26 (2) Is under at least a second suspension from school for the
 27 school year under IC 20-33-8-14 or IC 20-33-8-15.
 28 (3) Is under an expulsion from school under IC 20-33-8-14,
 29 IC 20-33-8-15, or IC 20-33-8-16.
 30 (4) Is considered a dropout under IC 20-33-2-28.5.

31 (b) At least five (5) days before holding an exit interview under
 32 IC 20-33-2-28.5, the school corporation shall give notice by certified
 33 mail or personal delivery to the student, the student's parent, or the
 34 student's guardian that the student's failure to attend an exit interview
 35 under IC 20-33-2-28.5 or return to school if the student does not meet
 36 the requirements to withdraw from school under IC 20-33-2-28.5 will
 37 result in the revocation or denial of the student's:

- 38 (1) driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit, **driving card, or driving**
 39 **card learner's permit**; and
 40 (2) employment certificate.

41 SECTION 11. IC 9-24-2-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012,
 42 SECTION 167, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS



1 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 2. The bureau shall suspend the
 2 driving privileges or invalidate the learner's permit **or driving card**
 3 **learner's permit** of an individual less than eighteen (18) years of age
 4 who is under an order entered by a juvenile court under IC 31-37-19-13
 5 through IC 31-37-19-17 (or IC 31-6-4-15.9(d), IC 31-6-4-15.9(e), or
 6 IC 31-6-4-15.9(f) before their repeal).

7 SECTION 12. IC 9-24-2-2.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.257-2017,
 8 SECTION 38, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 9 JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 2.5. (a) The bureau shall suspend the driving
 10 privileges or invalidate the learner's permit **or driving card learner's**
 11 **permit** of an individual who is under an order entered by a court under
 12 IC 35-43-1-2(d).

13 (b) The bureau shall suspend the driving privileges or invalidate the
 14 learner's permit **or driving card learner's permit** of an individual who
 15 is the subject of an order issued under IC 31-37-19-17 (or
 16 IC 31-6-4-15.9(f) before its repeal) or IC 35-43-1-2(d).

17 SECTION 13. IC 9-24-2-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 18 SECTION 424, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 19 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 3. (a) The bureau may not issue a
 20 driver's license, **driving card**, ~~or~~ learner's permit, **or driving card**
 21 **learner's permit** or grant driving privileges to the following
 22 individuals:

23 (1) An individual whose driving privileges have been suspended,
 24 during the period for which the driving privileges are suspended,
 25 or to an individual whose driver's license **or driving card** has
 26 been revoked, until the time the bureau is authorized under
 27 Indiana law to issue the individual a new driver's license **or**
 28 **driving card**.

29 (2) An individual whose learner's permit **or driving card**
 30 **learner's permit** has been suspended or revoked until the time
 31 the bureau is authorized under Indiana law to issue the individual
 32 a new learner's permit **or driving card learner's permit**.

33 (3) An individual who, in the opinion of the bureau, is afflicted
 34 with or suffering from a physical or mental disability or disease
 35 that prevents the individual from exercising reasonable and
 36 ordinary control over a motor vehicle while operating the motor
 37 vehicle on a highway.

38 (4) An individual who is unable to understand highway warnings
 39 or direction signs written in the English language.

40 (5) An individual who is required under this article to take an
 41 examination unless:

42 (A) the individual successfully passes the examination; or



- 1 (B) the bureau waives the examination requirement.
- 2 (6) An individual who is required under IC 9-25 or any other
- 3 statute to deposit or provide proof of financial responsibility and
- 4 who has not deposited or provided that proof.
- 5 (7) An individual when the bureau has good cause to believe that
- 6 the operation of a motor vehicle on a highway by the individual
- 7 would be inimical to public safety or welfare.
- 8 (8) An individual who is the subject of an order issued by:
- 9 (A) a court under IC 31-16-12-7 (or IC 31-1-11.5-13,
- 10 IC 31-6-6.1-16, or IC 31-14-12-4 before their repeal); or
- 11 (B) the Title IV-D agency;
- 12 ordering that a driver's license or permit not be issued to the
- 13 individual.
- 14 (9) An individual who has not presented valid documentary
- 15 evidence to the bureau of the individual's legal status in the
- 16 United States, as required by IC 9-24-9-2.5.
- 17 (10) An individual who does not otherwise satisfy the
- 18 requirements of this article.
- 19 (b) An individual subject to epileptic seizures may not be denied a
- 20 driver's license, **or driving card, learner's permit, or driving card**
- 21 **learner's permit** under this section if the individual presents a
- 22 statement from a licensed physician, on a form prescribed by the
- 23 bureau, that the individual is under medication and is free from
- 24 seizures while under medication.
- 25 SECTION 14. IC 9-24-3-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.256-2017,
- 26 SECTION 165, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
- 27 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. (a) Except as otherwise provided
- 28 in this article, the bureau shall issue an operator's license to an
- 29 individual who meets the following conditions:
- 30 (1) Satisfies the age requirements set forth in section 2.5 of this
- 31 chapter.
- 32 (2) Makes proper application to the bureau under IC 9-24-9 upon
- 33 a form prescribed by the bureau. The form must include an
- 34 attestation concerning the number of hours of supervised driving
- 35 practice that the individual has completed if the individual is
- 36 required under section 2.5 of this chapter to complete a certain
- 37 number of hours of supervised driving practice in order to receive
- 38 an operator's license. The:
- 39 (A) parent or guardian of an applicant less than eighteen (18)
- 40 years of age; or
- 41 (B) applicant, if the applicant is at least eighteen (18) years of
- 42 age;



- 1 shall attest in writing under penalty of perjury to the time logged
 2 in practice driving.
- 3 (3) Satisfactorily passes the examination and tests required for
 4 issuance of an operator's license under IC 9-24-10.
- 5 (4) Except as provided in subsection (e), pays the following
 6 applicable fee:
- 7 (A) For an individual who is less than seventy-five (75) years
 8 of age, seventeen dollars and fifty cents (\$17.50).
- 9 (B) For an individual who is at least seventy-five (75) years of
 10 age but less than eighty-five (85) years of age, eleven dollars
 11 (\$11).
- 12 (C) For an individual who is at least eighty-five (85) years of
 13 age, seven dollars (\$7).
- 14 (b) A fee described in subsection (a)(4)(A) **or** (f)(2)(A) shall be
 15 distributed as follows:
- 16 (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
 17 (2) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
 18 (3) Four dollars and fifty cents (\$4.50) to the motor vehicle
 19 highway account.
 20 (4) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated
 21 public safety communications fund.
 22 (5) Nine dollars and twenty-five cents (\$9.25) to the commission
 23 fund.
- 24 (c) A fee described in subsection (a)(4)(B) **or** (f)(2)(B) shall be
 25 distributed as follows:
- 26 (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
 27 (2) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
 28 (3) Three dollars (\$3) to the motor vehicle highway account.
 29 (4) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated
 30 public safety communications fund.
 31 (5) Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the commission
 32 fund.
- 33 (d) A fee described in subsection (a)(4)(C) **or** (f)(2)(C) shall be
 34 distributed as follows:
- 35 (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
 36 (2) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
 37 (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the motor vehicle highway account.
 38 (4) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated
 39 public safety communications fund.
 40 (5) Two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) to the commission
 41 fund.
- 42 (e) A fee described in subsection (a)(4) **or** (f)(2) may not be charged



- 1 to an individual who:
- 2 (1) is under the care and supervision of the department of child
- 3 services; and
- 4 (2) meets all other requirements for an operator's license under
- 5 IC 9-24.
- 6 **(f) The bureau shall issue a driving card to an individual who:**
- 7 **(1) meets the criteria described in IC 9-24-3.5; and**
- 8 **(2) subject to subsection (e), pays the applicable fee as follows:**
- 9 **(A) For an individual who is less than seventy-five (75)**
- 10 **years of age, seventeen dollars and fifty cents (\$17.50).**
- 11 **(B) For an individual who is at least seventy-five (75) years**
- 12 **of age but less than eighty-five (85) years of age, eleven**
- 13 **dollars (\$11).**
- 14 **(C) For an individual who is at least eighty-five (85) years**
- 15 **of age, seven dollars (\$7).**
- 16 SECTION 15. IC 9-24-3.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA CODE
- 17 AS A NEW CHAPTER TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
- 18 JULY 1, 2018]:
- 19 **Chapter 3.5. Driving Card**
- 20 **Sec. 1. An individual who is unable to present the valid**
- 21 **documentary evidence required by IC 9-24-9-2.5 may apply to the**
- 22 **bureau for a driving card.**
- 23 **Sec. 2. The bureau shall issue a driving card to an individual**
- 24 **who meets the following conditions:**
- 25 **(1) Satisfies the age requirements set forth in section 3 of this**
- 26 **chapter.**
- 27 **(2) Makes proper application to the bureau under IC 9-24-9**
- 28 **upon a form prescribed by the bureau. The form must include**
- 29 **an attestation concerning the number of hours of supervised**
- 30 **driving practice that the individual has completed if the**
- 31 **individual is required under section 3 of this chapter to**
- 32 **complete a certain number of hours of supervised driving**
- 33 **practice in order to receive a driving card. The:**
- 34 **(A) parent or guardian of an applicant less than eighteen**
- 35 **(18) years of age; or**
- 36 **(B) applicant, if the applicant is at least eighteen (18) years**
- 37 **of age;**
- 38 **shall attest in writing under penalty of perjury to the time**
- 39 **logged in practice driving.**
- 40 **(3) Satisfactorily passes the examination and tests required**
- 41 **for issuance of a driving card.**
- 42 **(4) Pays the fee prescribed by IC 9-24-3-1(f).**



1 **Sec. 3. (a) An individual must satisfy the requirements set forth**
2 **in one (1) of the following subdivisions to receive a driving card:**

3 **(1) The individual meets the following conditions:**

4 **(A) Is at least sixteen (16) years and one hundred eighty**
5 **(180) days of age.**

6 **(B) Has held a valid driving card learner's permit for at**
7 **least one hundred eighty (180) days.**

8 **(C) Obtains an instructor's certification that the individual**
9 **has satisfactorily completed an approved driver's**
10 **education course.**

11 **(D) Passes the required examination.**

12 **(E) Completes at least fifty (50) hours of supervised driving**
13 **practice, of which at least ten (10) hours are nighttime**
14 **driving, with a person who is:**

15 **(i) a licensed instructor or a licensed driver who is at**
16 **least twenty-five (25) years of age; or**

17 **(ii) the spouse of the individual and is at least twenty-one**
18 **(21) years of age.**

19 **(2) The individual meets the following conditions:**

20 **(A) Is at least sixteen (16) years and two hundred seventy**
21 **(270) days of age.**

22 **(B) Has held a valid driving card learner's permit for at**
23 **least one hundred eighty (180) days.**

24 **(C) Passes the required examination.**

25 **(D) Completes at least fifty (50) hours of supervised**
26 **driving practice, of which at least ten (10) hours are**
27 **nighttime driving, with a person who is:**

28 **(i) a licensed instructor or a licensed driver who is at**
29 **least twenty-five (25) years of age; or**

30 **(ii) the spouse of an individual and is at least twenty-one**
31 **(21) years of age.**

32 **(3) The individual meets the following conditions:**

33 **(A) Is at least eighteen (18) years of age.**

34 **(B) Has previously been a nonresident of Indiana but, at**
35 **the time of application, qualifies as an Indiana resident.**

36 **(C) Held a valid driver's license, excluding a learner's**
37 **permit or the equivalent, from the state of prior residence.**

38 **(D) Passes the required examination.**

39 **(b) An applicant who is required to complete at least fifty (50)**
40 **hours of supervised driving under subsection (a)(1)(E) or (a)(2)(D)**
41 **must submit to the bureau evidence of the time logged in practice**
42 **driving.**



1 **Sec. 4. A driving card must include a statement on the face of**
 2 **the card that indicates that the driving card may not be accepted**
 3 **by any federal agency for federal identification or any other**
 4 **federal purpose.**

5 **Sec. 5. A driving card allows the holder to operate a passenger**
 6 **motor vehicle or a truck with a declared gross weight equal to or**
 7 **less than eleven thousand (11,000) pounds.**

8 **Sec. 6. An individual who holds a driving card and operates a**
 9 **motor vehicle shall verify that financial responsibility on any**
 10 **motor vehicle that the holder operates is continuously maintained**
 11 **in the amounts required by IC 9-25-4.**

12 **Sec. 7. The bureau shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 to**
 13 **implement this chapter.**

14 SECTION 16. IC 9-24-7-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.256-2017,
 15 SECTION 168, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 16 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. (a) The bureau shall issue a
 17 learner's permit **or driving card learner's permit** to an individual who
 18 satisfies the following conditions:

19 (1) Makes a proper application in the form and manner prescribed
 20 by the bureau.

21 (2) Except as provided in subsection ~~(d)~~, **(e)**, pays a fee under
 22 subsection ~~(b)~~ **(c)** or ~~(e)~~, **(d)**, as applicable.

23 (3) If less than eighteen (18) years of age, is not ineligible under
 24 IC 9-24-2-1.

25 (4) Has passed a written examination as required under
 26 IC 9-24-10.

27 (5) Either:

28 (A) is at least sixteen (16) years of age; or

29 (B) if at least fifteen (15) years of age but less than sixteen

30 (16) years of age, is enrolled in an approved driver education
 31 course.

32 **(b) An individual who is unable to present the valid**
 33 **documentary evidence required by IC 9-24-9-2.5 may apply for a**
 34 **driving card learner's permit. A driving card learner's permit may**
 35 **be used only as the basis to acquire a driving card under**
 36 **IC 9-24-3.5. A driving card learner's permit must include a**
 37 **statement on the face of the card that indicates that the driving**
 38 **card learner's permit may not be accepted by any federal agency**
 39 **for federal identification or any other federal purpose. A driving**
 40 **card learner's permit allows the holder to operate a passenger**
 41 **motor vehicle or a truck with a declared gross weight equal to or**
 42 **less than eleven thousand (11,000) pounds. An individual who holds**



1 **a driving card learner's permit and operates a motor vehicle shall**
 2 **verify that financial responsibility on any motor vehicle that the**
 3 **holder operates is continuously maintained in the amounts**
 4 **required by IC 9-25-4.**

5 ~~(b)~~ (c) The fee for a learner's permit issued before January 1, 2017,
 6 is nine dollars and fifty cents (\$9.50). The fee shall be distributed as
 7 follows:

- 8 (1) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the motor vehicle highway account.
- 9 (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- 10 (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- 11 (4) One dollar and seventy-five cents (\$1.75) to the integrated
- 12 public safety communications fund.
- 13 (5) Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the commission
- 14 fund.

15 ~~(c)~~ (d) The fee for a learner's permit issued after December 31,
 16 2016, **or a driving card learner's permit issued after June 30, 2018,**
 17 is nine dollars (\$9). The fee shall be distributed as follows:

- 18 (1) Twenty-five cents (\$0.25) to the motor vehicle highway
- 19 account.
- 20 (2) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology fund.
- 21 (3) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
- 22 (4) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated
- 23 public safety communications fund.
- 24 (5) Five dollars (\$5) to the commission fund.

25 ~~(d)~~ (e) A fee described in subsection (a) may not be charged to an
 26 individual who:

- 27 (1) is under the care and supervision of the department of child
- 28 services; and
- 29 (2) meets all other requirements for a learner's permit under
- 30 IC 9-24.

31 SECTION 17. IC 9-24-7-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.116-2017,
 32 SECTION 4, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 33 JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 4. **Except as provided in section 1(b) of this**
 34 **chapter, a learner's permit or driving card learner's permit**
 35 **authorizes the holder to operate a motor vehicle, except a motorcycle,**
 36 **a Class A motor driven cycle, or a commercial motor vehicle, upon a**
 37 **highway under the following conditions:**

- 38 (1) While the holder is participating in practice driving in a
- 39 approved driver education course and is accompanied in the front
- 40 seat of the motor vehicle by an individual with valid driving
- 41 privileges who:
- 42 (A) is licensed as a driver education instructor under



- 1 IC 9-27-6-8 and is working under the direction of a driver
 2 training school described in IC 9-27-6-3(a)(2); or
 3 (B) is a certified driver rehabilitation specialist recognized by
 4 the bureau who is employed through a driver rehabilitation
 5 program.
- 6 (2) While the holder is participating in practice driving after
 7 having commenced an approved driver education course and is
 8 accompanied in the front seat of the motor vehicle by an
 9 individual with valid driving privileges who is at least:
- 10 (A) twenty-five (25) years of age and related to the applicant
 11 by blood, marriage, or legal status; or
 12 (B) if the licensed individual is the holder's spouse, twenty-one
 13 (21) years of age.
- 14 (3) If the holder is not participating in an approved driver
 15 education course, and is less than eighteen (18) years of age, the
 16 holder may participate in practice driving if accompanied in the
 17 front seat of the motor vehicle by an individual who is:
- 18 (A) a licensed driver, with valid driving privileges, who is:
 19 (i) at least twenty-five (25) years of age; and
 20 (ii) related to the applicant by blood, marriage, or legal
 21 status;
- 22 (B) the spouse of the applicant who is:
 23 (i) a licensed driver with valid driving privileges; and
 24 (ii) at least twenty-one (21) years of age; or
- 25 (C) an individual with valid driving privileges who:
 26 (i) is licensed as a driver education instructor under
 27 IC 9-27-6-8 and is working under the direction of a driver
 28 training school described in IC 9-27-6-3(a)(2); or
 29 (ii) is a certified driver rehabilitation specialist recognized
 30 by the bureau who is employed through a driver
 31 rehabilitation program.
- 32 (4) If the holder is not participating in an approved driver
 33 education course, and is at least eighteen (18) years of age, the
 34 holder may participate in practice driving if accompanied in the
 35 front seat of the motor vehicle by an individual who is:
- 36 (A) a licensed driver, with valid driving privileges, who is at
 37 least twenty-five (25) years of age; or
 38 (B) the spouse of the applicant who is:
 39 (i) a licensed driver with valid driving privileges; and
 40 (ii) at least twenty-one (21) years of age.
- 41 (5) If the holder is less than eighteen (18) years of age and is
 42 under the care and supervision of the department of child



1 services, the holder may participate in practice driving if
 2 accompanied in the front seat of the motor vehicle by an
 3 individual who is:

4 (A) a licensed driver with valid driving privileges who is:

5 (i) at least twenty-five (25) years of age; and

6 (ii) related to the applicant by blood, marriage, or legal
 7 status;

8 (B) a licensed driver with valid driving privileges who is:

9 (i) at least twenty-five (25) years of age; and

10 (ii) approved by the department of child services; or

11 (C) an individual with valid driving privileges who is:

12 (i) licensed as a driver education instructor under
 13 IC 9-27-6-8 and is working under the direction of a driver
 14 training school described in IC 9-27-6-3(a)(2); or

15 (ii) a certified driver rehabilitation specialist recognized by
 16 the bureau who is employed through a driver rehabilitation
 17 program.

18 SECTION 18. IC 9-24-7-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.125-2012,
 19 SECTION 200, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 20 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 5. **(a)** A holder of a learner's permit
 21 may take the skills examination for an operator's license not later than
 22 the expiration date of the learner's permit.

23 **(b) A holder of a driving card learner's permit may take the**
 24 **skills examination for a driving card not later than the expiration**
 25 **date of the driving card learner's permit.**

26 **(c)** A holder who does not pass the skills examination **for:**

27 **(1) an operator's license; or**

28 **(2) a driving card;**

29 after a third attempt is not eligible to take the examination until two (2)
 30 months after the date of the last failed examination.

31 SECTION 19. IC 9-24-7-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.85-2013,
 32 SECTION 33, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 33 JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 7. The bureau shall publish the following:

34 (1) An online driving guide that may be used by the holder of a
 35 learner's permit **or a driving card learner's permit** and the
 36 parent of the holder of a learner's permit **or a driving card**
 37 **learner's permit**, if applicable.

38 (2) An online log that must be completed to show evidence of the
 39 completion of the hours of supervised practice driving required
 40 under IC 9-24-3-2.5(a)(1)(E) or IC 9-24-3-2.5(a)(2)(D), **or**
 41 **IC 9-24-3.5-3(a)(1)(E) or IC 9-24-3.5-3(a)(2)(D), as applicable.**

42 SECTION 20. IC 9-24-9-2, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,



1 SECTION 463, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 2 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 2. (a) Except as provided in
 3 subsection (b), each application for a driver's license or permit under
 4 this chapter must require the following information:

- 5 (1) The full legal name of the applicant.
 6 (2) The applicant's date of birth.
 7 (3) The gender of the applicant.
 8 (4) The applicant's height, weight, hair color, and eye color.
 9 (5) The principal address and mailing address of the applicant.
 10 (6) A:
 11 (A) valid Social Security number; or
 12 (B) verification of an applicant's:
 13 (i) ineligibility to be issued a Social Security number; and
 14 (ii) identity and lawful status;

15 **unless the applicant is applying for a driving card under**
 16 **IC 9-24-3.5 or a driving card learner's permit under**
 17 **IC 9-24-7-1(b). An applicant for a driving card or driving**
 18 **card learner's permit must submit a valid individual taxpayer**
 19 **identification number for the applicant.**

- 20 (7) Whether the applicant has been subject to fainting spells or
 21 seizures.
 22 (8) Whether the applicant has been issued a driver's license or has
 23 been the holder of a permit, and if so, when and by what
 24 jurisdiction.
 25 (9) Whether the applicant's driver's license or permit has ever
 26 been suspended or revoked, and if so, the date of and the reason
 27 for the suspension or revocation.
 28 (10) Whether the applicant has been convicted of:
 29 (A) a crime punishable as a felony under Indiana motor
 30 vehicle law; or
 31 (B) any other felony in the commission of which a motor
 32 vehicle was used;
 33 that has not been expunged by a court.
 34 (11) Whether the applicant has a physical or mental disability,
 35 and if so, the nature of the disability.
 36 (12) The signature of the applicant showing the applicant's legal
 37 name as it appears or will appear on the driver's license or permit.
 38 (13) A digital photograph of the applicant.
 39 (14) Any other information the bureau requires.

40 (b) For purposes of subsection (a), an individual certified as a
 41 program participant in the address confidentiality program under
 42 IC 5-26.5 is not required to provide the individual's principal address



1 and mailing address, but may provide an address designated by the
 2 office of the attorney general under IC 5-26.5 as the individual's
 3 principal address and mailing address.

4 (c) In addition to the information required by subsection (a), an
 5 applicant who is required to complete at least fifty (50) hours of
 6 supervised practice driving under IC 9-24-3-2.5(a)(1)(E), or
 7 IC 9-24-3-2.5(a)(2)(D), **IC 9-24-3.5-3(a)(1)(E), or**
 8 **IC 9-24-3.5-3(a)(2)(D)** must submit to the bureau evidence of the time
 9 logged in practice driving.

10 SECTION 21. IC 9-24-9-2.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 11 SECTION 465, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 12 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 2.5. **(a) Except as provided in**
 13 **subsection (b)**, in addition to the information required from the
 14 applicant for a driver's license or permit under sections 1 and 2 of this
 15 chapter, the bureau shall require an applicant to present to the bureau
 16 valid documentary evidence that the applicant:

- 17 (1) is a citizen or national of the United States;
- 18 (2) is an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the
 19 United States;
- 20 (3) has conditional permanent resident status in the United States;
- 21 (4) has an approved application for asylum in the United States or
 22 has entered into the United States in refugee status;
- 23 (5) is an alien lawfully admitted for temporary residence in the
 24 United States;
- 25 (6) has a valid unexpired nonimmigrant visa or nonimmigrant visa
 26 status for entry into the United States;
- 27 (7) has a pending application for asylum in the United States;
- 28 (8) has a pending or approved application for temporary protected
 29 status in the United States;
- 30 (9) has approved deferred action status; or
- 31 (10) has a pending application for adjustment of status to that of
 32 an alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the United
 33 States or conditional permanent resident status in the United
 34 States.

35 **(b) An applicant for a driving card under IC 9-24-3.5 or a**
 36 **driving card learner's permit under IC 9-24-7-1(b) who is unable**
 37 **to provide the documentation required under subsection (a) must**
 38 **provide the bureau with documentation of residence in Indiana as**
 39 **required by rules adopted by the bureau under IC 4-22-2 or**
 40 **emergency rules adopted in the manner provided under**
 41 **IC 4-22-2-37.1. The rules must provide that the supporting**
 42 **documentation may be provided by official documentation from a**



1 **foreign consulate.**

2 SECTION 22. IC 9-24-10-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
3 SECTION 474, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
4 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 4. (a) Except as provided in
5 subsection (c), an examination for a learner's permit, ~~or~~ driver's license,
6 **driving card learner's permit, or driving card** must include the
7 following:

- 8 (1) A test of the following of the applicant:
9 (A) Eyesight.
10 (B) Ability to read and understand highway signs regulating,
11 warning, and directing traffic.
12 (C) Knowledge of Indiana traffic laws, including
13 IC 9-26-1-1.5.
14 (2) An actual demonstration of the applicant's skill in exercising
15 ordinary and reasonable control in the operation of a motor
16 vehicle under the type of permit or driver's license applied for.

17 (b) The examination may include further physical and mental
18 examination that the bureau finds necessary to determine the
19 applicant's fitness to operate a motor vehicle safely upon a highway.
20 The applicant must provide the motor vehicle used in the examination.
21 An autocycle may not be used as the motor vehicle provided for the
22 examination.

- 23 (c) The bureau:
24 (1) may waive the actual demonstration required under subsection
25 (a)(2) for an individual who has passed:
26 (A) a driver's education class and a skills test given by a driver
27 training school; or
28 (B) a driver education program given by an entity licensed
29 under IC 9-27; and
30 (2) may waive the testing, other than eyesight testing under
31 subsection (a)(1)(A), of an applicant who has passed:
32 (A) an examination concerning:
33 (i) subsection (a)(1)(B); and
34 (ii) subsection (a)(1)(C); and
35 (B) a skills test;
36 given by a driver training school or an entity licensed under
37 IC 9-27.

38 (d) An instructor having a license, under IC 9-27-6-8 who did not
39 instruct the applicant for the driver's license, ~~or driving card, learner's~~
40 **permit, or driving card learner's permit** in driver education is not
41 civilly or criminally liable for a report made in good faith to the:

- 42 (1) bureau;



- 1 (2) commission; or
 2 (3) driver licensing medical advisory board;
 3 concerning the fitness of the applicant to operate a motor vehicle in a
 4 manner that does not jeopardize the safety of individuals or property.
- 5 SECTION 23. IC 9-24-10-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 6 SECTION 476, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 7 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 7. (a) If the bureau has good cause
 8 to believe that a licensed driver is:
 9 (1) incompetent; or
 10 (2) otherwise unfit to operate a motor vehicle;
 11 the bureau may, upon written notice of at least five (5) days, require the
 12 licensed driver to submit to an examination, an investigation of the
 13 driver's continued fitness to operate a motor vehicle safely, including
 14 requesting medical information from the driver or the driver's health
 15 care sources, or both an examination and an investigation.
- 16 (b) Upon the conclusion of all examinations and investigations of a
 17 driver under this section, the bureau:
 18 (1) shall take appropriate action; and
 19 (2) may:
 20 (A) suspend or revoke the driver's license, **driving card**, or
 21 driving privileges of the licensed driver;
 22 (B) permit the licensed driver to retain the driver's license,
 23 **driving card**, or driving privileges of the licensed driver; or
 24 (C) issue restricted driving privileges subject to restrictions the
 25 bureau considers necessary in the interest of public safety.
- 26 (c) If a licensed driver refuses or neglects to submit to an
 27 examination or investigation under this section, the bureau may
 28 suspend or revoke the driver's license, **driving card**, or driving
 29 privileges of the licensed driver. The bureau may not suspend or revoke
 30 the driver's license, **driving card**, or driving privileges of the licensed
 31 driver until a reasonable investigation of the driver's continued fitness
 32 to operate a motor vehicle safely has been made by the bureau.
- 33 (d) A licensed driver may appeal an action taken by the bureau
 34 under this section to the circuit court or superior court of the county in
 35 which the licensed driver resides.
- 36 SECTION 24. IC 9-24-11-3.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 37 SECTION 480, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 38 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 3.5. (a) This section applies:
 39 (1) to an individual who is less than twenty-one (21) years of age;
 40 and
 41 (2) during the period ending one hundred eighty (180) days after
 42 the individual is issued a driver's license **or driving card** under



- 1 this article.
- 2 (b) An individual may not operate a motor vehicle:
- 3 (1) from 10 p.m. until 5 a.m. of the following morning, unless the
- 4 individual is:
 - 5 (A) participating in, going to, or returning from:
 - 6 (i) lawful employment;
 - 7 (ii) a school sanctioned activity; or
 - 8 (iii) a religious event; or
 - 9 (B) accompanied in the front seat of the motor vehicle by a
 - 10 licensed driver with valid driving privileges who is:
 - 11 (i) at least twenty-five (25) years of age; or
 - 12 (ii) if the licensed driver is the individual's spouse, at least
 - 13 twenty-one (21) years of age; or
- 14 (2) in which there are passengers, unless:
 - 15 (A) each passenger in the motor vehicle is:
 - 16 (i) a child or stepchild of the individual;
 - 17 (ii) a sibling of the individual, including step or half
 - 18 siblings;
 - 19 (iii) the spouse of the individual; or
 - 20 (iv) any combination of individuals described in items (i)
 - 21 through (iii); or
 - 22 (B) the individual is accompanied in the front seat of the motor
 - 23 vehicle by a licensed driver with valid driving privileges who
 - 24 is:
 - 25 (i) at least twenty-five (25) years of age; or
 - 26 (ii) if the licensed driver is the individual's spouse, at least
 - 27 twenty-one (21) years of age.
- 28 SECTION 25. IC 9-24-11-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
- 29 SECTION 483, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
- 30 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 4. (a) **Except as provided in**
- 31 **subsection (e)**, an individual may not hold or possess more than one
- 32 (1) credential at a time.
- 33 (b) An individual may not hold or possess:
 - 34 (1) a credential; and
 - 35 (2) a driver's license or identification card issued by a government
 - 36 authority that issues driver's licenses and identification cards from
 - 37 another state, territory, federal district, commonwealth, or
 - 38 possession of the United States.
- 39 (c) An individual shall destroy or surrender to the bureau any and
- 40 all credentials, driver's licenses, or identification cards that would
- 41 cause the individual to violate subsection (a) or (b).
- 42 (d) An individual who violates this section commits a Class C



1 infraction.

2 **(e) This section does not apply to the possession of a driving**
 3 **card or a driving card learner's permit.**

4 SECTION 26. IC 9-24-11-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 5 SECTION 484, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 6 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 5. (a) Except as provided in
 7 subsection ~~(h)~~, **(d)**, a learner's permit, ~~or~~ driver's license, **driving card**
 8 **learner's permit, or driving card** issued under this article must
 9 contain the following information:

10 (1) The full legal name of the permittee or licensee.

11 (2) The date of birth of the permittee or licensee.

12 (3) The address of the principal residence of the permittee or
 13 licensee.

14 (4) The hair color and eye color of the permittee or licensee.

15 (5) The date of issue and expiration date of the permit or license.

16 (6) The gender of the permittee or licensee.

17 (7) The unique identifying number of the permit or license.

18 (8) The weight of the permittee or licensee.

19 (9) The height of the permittee or licensee.

20 (10) A reproduction of the signature of the permittee or licensee.

21 (11) If the permittee or licensee is less than eighteen (18) years of
 22 age at the time of issuance, the dates, printed prominently, on
 23 which the permittee or licensee will become:

24 (A) eighteen (18) years of age; and

25 (B) twenty-one (21) years of age.

26 (12) If the permittee or licensee is at least eighteen (18) years of
 27 age but less than twenty-one (21) years of age at the time of
 28 issuance, the date, printed prominently, on which the permittee or
 29 licensee will become twenty-one (21) years of age.

30 (13) Except as provided in subsection (b), a digital photograph of
 31 the permittee or licensee.

32 (b) The bureau may provide for the omission of a photograph or
 33 computerized image from any driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit,
 34 **driving card learner's permit, or driving card** if there is good cause
 35 for the omission. However, a driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit,
 36 **driving card learner's permit, or driving card** issued without a
 37 digital photograph must include a statement that indicates that the
 38 driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit, **driving card learner's permit, or**
 39 **driving card** may not be accepted by a federal agency for federal
 40 identification or any other federal purpose.

41 (c) A driver's license or learner's permit issued to an individual who:

42 (1) has a valid, unexpired nonimmigrant visa or has nonimmigrant



- 1 visa status for entry in the United States;
 2 (2) has a pending application for asylum in the United States;
 3 (3) has a pending or approved application for temporary protected
 4 status in the United States;
 5 (4) has approved deferred action status; or
 6 (5) has a pending application for adjustment of status to that of an
 7 alien lawfully admitted for permanent residence in the United
 8 States or conditional permanent residence status in the United
 9 States;

10 must be clearly identified as a temporary driver's license or learner's
 11 permit. A temporary driver's license or learner's permit issued under
 12 this subsection may not be renewed without the presentation of valid
 13 documentary evidence proving that the licensee's or permittee's
 14 temporary status has been extended.

15 (d) For purposes of subsection (a), an individual certified as a
 16 program participant in the address confidentiality program under
 17 IC 5-26.5 is not required to provide the address of the individual's
 18 principal residence, but may provide an address designated by the
 19 office of the attorney general under IC 5-26.5 as the address of the
 20 individual's principal residence.

21 SECTION 27. IC 9-24-11-5.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.65-2017,
 22 SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 23 JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 5.5. (a) If an individual has:

- 24 (1) indicated on the application for a driver's license or learner's
 25 permit that the individual is a veteran and wishes to have an
 26 indication of the individual's veteran status appear on the driver's
 27 license or learner's permit; and
 28 (2) provided proof at the time of application of the individual's
 29 veteran status;

30 an indication of the individual's veteran status shall be shown on the
 31 driver's license or learner's permit.

32 (b) If an individual has:

- 33 (1) indicated on the individual's application for a driver's license
 34 or learner's permit that the applicant:
 35 (A) is a surviving spouse of a veteran; and
 36 (B) wishes to have an indication of the applicant's status as a
 37 surviving spouse of a veteran appear on the driver's license or
 38 learner's permit; and
 39 (2) provided the documentation necessary to verify that the
 40 applicant was married, at the time of the decedent's death, to a
 41 veteran;

42 an indication of the individual's status as a surviving spouse of a



1 veteran shall be shown on the driver's license or learner's permit.

2 (c) If an individual submits information concerning the individual's
3 medical condition in conjunction with the individual's application for
4 a driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit, **driving card, or driving card**
5 **learner's permit**, the bureau shall place an identifying symbol on the
6 face of the driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit, **driving card, or**
7 **driving card learner's permit** to indicate that the individual has a
8 medical condition of note. The bureau shall include information on the
9 individual's driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit, **driving card, or**
10 **driving card learner's permit** that briefly describes the individual's
11 medical condition. The information must be printed in a manner that
12 alerts an individual reading the driver's license, ~~or~~ learner's permit,
13 **driving card, or driving card learner's permit** to the existence of the
14 medical condition. The individual submitting the information
15 concerning the medical condition is responsible for its accuracy.

16 SECTION 28. IC 9-24-11-7, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
17 SECTION 486, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
18 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 7. The bureau, when issuing a
19 permit or driver's license, may, whenever good cause appears, impose
20 restrictions suitable to the licensee's or permittee's driving ability with
21 respect to the type of or special mechanical control devices required on
22 a motor vehicle that the licensee operates. The bureau may impose
23 other restrictions applicable to the licensee or permittee that the bureau
24 determines are appropriate to assure the safe operation of a motor
25 vehicle by the licensee or permittee, including a requirement to take
26 prescribed medication. When the restrictions are imposed, the bureau
27 may:

28 (1) issue either a special restricted license **or a special restricted**
29 **permit; or**

30 (2) ~~shall~~ set forth the restrictions upon the usual license **or permit**
31 form.

32 SECTION 29. IC 9-24-12-0.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
33 SECTION 489, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
34 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 0.5. (a) A learner's permit **or**
35 **driving card learner's permit** expires two (2) years after the date of
36 issuance.

37 (b) A motorcycle permit expires one (1) year after the date of
38 issuance. A motorcycle permit may be renewed one (1) time for a
39 period of one (1) year. An individual who does not obtain a motorcycle
40 endorsement under IC 9-24-8.5 before the expiration of the renewed
41 motorcycle permit may not reapply for a new motorcycle permit for a
42 period of one (1) year after the date of expiration of the renewed



1 motorcycle permit.

2 (c) A commercial learner's permit expires one hundred eighty (180)
3 days after the date of issuance. The bureau may issue not more than
4 three (3) commercial learner's permits to an individual within a
5 twenty-four (24) month period.

6 (d) The fee to renew a permit that expires under this section is the
7 applicable fee to issue the permit under this article.

8 SECTION 30. IC 9-24-12-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
9 SECTION 490, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
10 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. (a) Notwithstanding subsection
11 (c) and except as provided in subsection (b) and sections 10 and 11 of
12 this chapter, the expiration date of an operator's license that is the
13 renewal license for an operator's license that contains a 2012 expiration
14 date is as follows:

15 (1) If the operator's license was previously issued or renewed after
16 May 14, 2007, and before January 1, 2008, the renewal operator's
17 license expires at midnight on the birthday of the holder that
18 occurs in 2017.

19 (2) If the operator's license was previously issued or renewed after
20 December 31, 2007, and before January 1, 2009, the renewal
21 operator's license expires at midnight on the birthday of the holder
22 that occurs in 2018.

23 (3) If the operator's license was previously issued or renewed after
24 December 31, 2005, and before January 1, 2007, the renewal
25 operator's license expires at midnight on the birthday of the holder
26 that occurs in 2016.

27 This subsection expires January 1, 2019.

28 (b) Except as provided in sections 10 and 11 of this chapter, an
29 operator's license issued to an applicant who is at least seventy-five
30 (75) years of age expires at midnight of the birthday of the holder that
31 occurs three (3) years following the date of issuance.

32 (c) Except as provided in subsections (a), (b), and (d) and sections
33 10 and 11 of this chapter, an operator's license issued under this article
34 expires at midnight of the birthday of the holder that occurs six (6)
35 years following the date of issuance.

36 (d) An operator's license issued to an individual who is less than
37 twenty-one (21) years of age expires at midnight of the date thirty (30)
38 days after the twenty-first birthday of the holder. However, if the
39 individual complies with ~~IC 9-24-9-2.5(5)~~ **IC 9-24-9-2.5(a)(5)** through
40 ~~IC 9-24-9-2.5(9)~~; **IC 9-24-9-2.5(a)(9)**, the operator's license expires:

41 (1) at midnight one (1) year after issuance if there is no expiration
42 date on the authorization granted to the individual to remain in the



1 United States; or

2 (2) if there is an expiration date on the authorization granted to
3 the individual to remain in the United States, the earlier of the
4 following:

5 (A) At midnight of the date the authorization to remain in the
6 United States expires.

7 (B) At midnight of the date thirty (30) days after the
8 twenty-first birthday of the holder.

9 SECTION 31. IC 9-24-12-2.5 IS ADDED TO THE INDIANA
10 CODE AS A **NEW SECTION TO READ AS FOLLOWS**
11 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: **Sec. 2.5. Except as provided in**
12 **sections 10 and 11 of this chapter, a driving card issued under this**
13 **article expires at midnight of the birthday of the holder that occurs**
14 **six (6) years following the date of issuance.**

15 SECTION 32. IC 9-24-12-4, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
16 SECTION 493, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
17 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 4. (a) Except as provided in
18 subsections (b), ~~and~~ (c), **and (d)**, the application for renewal of:

19 (1) an operator's license;

20 (2) a chauffeur's license (before the expiration of IC 9-24-4 on
21 July 1, 2024);

22 (3) a public passenger chauffeur's license (before the expiration
23 of IC 9-24-5 on July 1, 2022);

24 (4) an identification card; ~~or~~

25 (5) a photo exempt identification card; **or**

26 **(6) a driving card;**

27 under this article may be filed not more than twelve (12) months before
28 the expiration date of the license, identification card, ~~or~~ photo exempt
29 identification card, **or driving card** held by the applicant.

30 (b) When the applicant complies with ~~IC 9-24-9-2.5(5)~~
31 **IC 9-24-9-2.5(a)(5)** through ~~IC 9-24-9-2.5(10)~~; **IC 9-24-9-2.5(a)(10)**,
32 an application for renewal of a driver's license in subsection (a)(1),
33 (a)(2), or (a)(3) may be filed not more than one (1) month before the
34 expiration date of the license held by the applicant.

35 (c) When the applicant complies with IC 9-24-16-3.5(1)(E) through
36 IC 9-24-16-3.5(1)(J), an application for renewal of an identification
37 card under subsection (a)(4) may be filed not more than one (1) month
38 before the expiration date of the identification card held by the
39 applicant.

40 **(d) When the applicant complies with IC 9-24-9-2.5(b), an**
41 **application for renewal of a driving card under subsection (a)(6)**
42 **may be filed not more than one (1) month before the expiration**



1 **date of the driving card held by the applicant.**

2 SECTION 33. IC 9-24-12-5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.256-2017,
 3 SECTION 174, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 4 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 5. (a) Except as provided in
 5 subsection (b), and subject to subsection (d), an individual applying for
 6 renewal of an operator's **license**, a chauffeur's **license**, or a public
 7 passenger chauffeur's license, **or a driving card**, including any
 8 endorsements in effect with respect to the license **or driving card**,
 9 must apply in person at a license branch and do the following:

10 (1) Pass an eyesight examination.

11 (2) Pass a written examination if:

12 (A) the applicant has at least six (6) active points on the
 13 applicant's driving record maintained by the bureau;

14 (B) the applicant has not reached the applicant's twenty-first
 15 birthday and has active points on the applicant's driving record
 16 maintained by the bureau; or

17 (C) the applicant is in possession of a driver's license **or**
 18 **driving card** that is expired beyond one hundred eighty (180)
 19 days.

20 (b) The bureau may adopt rules under IC 4-22-2 concerning the
 21 ability of a holder of an operator's, a chauffeur's, or a public passenger
 22 chauffeur's license to renew the license, including any endorsements in
 23 effect with respect to the license by mail or by electronic service. If
 24 rules are adopted under this subsection, the rules must provide that an
 25 individual's renewal by mail or by electronic service is subject to the
 26 following conditions:

27 (1) A valid computerized image of the individual must exist
 28 within the records of the bureau.

29 (2) The previous renewal of the individual's operator's,
 30 chauffeur's, or public passenger chauffeur's license must not have
 31 been by mail or by electronic service.

32 (3) The application for or previous renewal of the individual's
 33 license must have included a test of the individual's eyesight
 34 approved by the bureau.

35 (4) If the individual were applying for the license renewal in
 36 person at a license branch, the individual would not be required
 37 under subsection (a)(2) to submit to a written examination.

38 (5) The individual must be a citizen of the United States, as
 39 shown in the records of the bureau.

40 (6) There must not have been any change in the:

41 (A) address; or

42 (B) name;



- 1 of the individual since the issuance or previous renewal of the
 2 individual's operator's, chauffeur's, or public passenger chauffeur's
 3 license.
 4 (7) The operator's, chauffeur's, or public passenger chauffeur's
 5 license of the individual must not be:
 6 (A) suspended; or
 7 (B) expired more than one hundred eighty (180) days;
 8 at the time of the application for renewal.
 9 (8) The individual must be less than seventy-five (75) years of age
 10 at the time of the application for renewal.
 11 (c) An individual applying for the renewal of an operator's **license**,
 12 a chauffeur's **license**, ~~or~~ a public passenger chauffeur's license, **or a**
 13 **driving card**, including any endorsements in effect with respect to the
 14 license **or driving card**, must apply in person at a license branch under
 15 subsection (a) if the individual is not entitled to apply by mail or by
 16 electronic service under rules adopted under subsection (b).
 17 (d) The bureau may not issue or renew a chauffeur's or a public
 18 passenger chauffeur's license after December 31, 2016. If a holder of
 19 a chauffeur's or a public passenger chauffeur's license applies after
 20 December 31, 2016, for renewal of the chauffeur's or public passenger
 21 chauffeur's license, the bureau shall issue to the holder an operator's
 22 license with a for-hire endorsement if the holder:
 23 (1) applies in a form and manner prescribed by the bureau; and
 24 (2) satisfies the requirements for renewal of an operator's license,
 25 including the fee and examination requirements under this
 26 section.
 27 (e) An individual applying for the renewal of an operator's license
 28 **or driving card** shall pay the following applicable fee:
 29 (1) If the individual is less than seventy-five (75) years of age,
 30 seventeen dollars and fifty cents (\$17.50). The fee shall be
 31 distributed as follows:
 32 (A) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology
 33 fund.
 34 (B) Two dollars (\$2) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
 35 (C) Four dollars and fifty cents (\$4.50) to the motor vehicle
 36 highway account.
 37 (D) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated
 38 public safety communications fund.
 39 (E) Nine dollars and twenty-five cents (\$9.25) to the
 40 commission fund.
 41 (2) If the individual is at least seventy-five (75) years of age and
 42 less than eighty-five (85) years of age, eleven dollars (\$11). The



- 1 fee shall be distributed as follows:
 2 (A) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology
 3 fund.
 4 (B) One dollar and fifty cents (\$1.50) to the crossroads 2000
 5 fund.
 6 (C) Three dollars (\$3) to the motor vehicle highway account.
 7 (D) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated
 8 public safety communications fund.
 9 (E) Four dollars and seventy-five cents (\$4.75) to the
 10 commission fund.
 11 (3) If the individual is at least eighty-five (85) years of age, seven
 12 dollars (\$7). The fee shall be distributed as follows:
 13 (A) Fifty cents (\$0.50) to the state motor vehicle technology
 14 fund.
 15 (B) One dollar (\$1) to the crossroads 2000 fund.
 16 (C) Two dollars (\$2) to the motor vehicle highway account.
 17 (D) One dollar and twenty-five cents (\$1.25) to the integrated
 18 public safety communications fund.
 19 (E) Two dollars and twenty-five cents (\$2.25) to the
 20 commission fund.

21 A fee paid under this subsection after December 31, 2016, includes the
 22 renewal of any endorsements that are in effect with respect to the
 23 operator's license **or driving card** at the time of renewal.

24 SECTION 34. IC 9-24-12-10, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 25 SECTION 496, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 26 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 10. **(a)** Except as provided in
 27 section 11 of this chapter, a driver's license issued to or renewed by a
 28 driver who is at least eighty-five (85) years of age expires at midnight
 29 of the birthday of the holder that occurs two (2) years following the
 30 date of issuance.

31 **(b) Except as provided in section 11 of this chapter, a driving**
 32 **card issued under this article to an applicant who is at least**
 33 **seventy-five (75) years of age expires at midnight of the birthday**
 34 **of the holder that occurs three (3) years following the date of**
 35 **issuance.**

36 SECTION 35. IC 9-24-12-11, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 37 SECTION 497, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 38 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 11. (a) This section applies to:

- 39 **(1) a driver's license other than a commercial driver's license; and**
 40 **(2) a driving card issued under IC 9-24-3.5.**

41 (b) If the birthday of a holder on which the holder's driver's license
 42 **or driving card** would otherwise expire falls on:



1 (1) Sunday;
 2 (2) a legal holiday (as set forth in IC 1-1-9-1); or
 3 (3) a weekday when all license branches in the county of
 4 residence of the holder are closed;
 5 the driver's license **or driving card** of the holder does not expire until
 6 midnight of the first day after the birthday on which a license branch
 7 is open for business in the county of residence of the holder.
 8 (c) A driver's license issued to an applicant who complies with
 9 ~~IC 9-24-9-2.5(5)~~ **IC 9-24-9-2.5(a)(5)** through ~~IC 9-24-9-2.5(10)~~
 10 **IC 9-24-9-2.5(a)(10)** expires:
 11 (1) at midnight one (1) year after issuance if there is no expiration
 12 date on the authorization granted to the individual to remain in the
 13 United States; or
 14 (2) if there is an expiration date on the authorization granted to
 15 the individual to remain in the United States, the earlier of the
 16 following:
 17 (A) At midnight of the date the authorization of the holder to
 18 be a legal permanent resident or conditional resident alien of
 19 the United States expires.
 20 (B) At midnight of the birthday of the holder that occurs six
 21 (6) years after the date of issuance.
 22 SECTION 36. IC 9-24-12-13, AS ADDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 23 SECTION 499, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 24 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 13. An individual who fails to
 25 renew the individual's driver's license **or driving card** on or before the
 26 ~~driver's license~~ expiration date **of the driver's license or driving card**
 27 shall pay to the bureau an administrative penalty as follows:
 28 (1) Before January 1, 2017, an administrative penalty of five
 29 dollars (\$5).
 30 (2) After December 31, 2016, an administrative penalty of six
 31 dollars (\$6).
 32 An administrative penalty shall be deposited in the commission fund.
 33 SECTION 37. IC 9-24-13-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 34 SECTION 500, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 35 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. An individual holding a driver's
 36 license **or driving card** issued under this article may exercise the
 37 privilege granted by the driver's license **or driving card** upon all
 38 highways and is not required to obtain any other driver's license to
 39 exercise the privilege by a county, municipal, or local board or by any
 40 body having authority to adopt local police regulations.
 41 SECTION 38. IC 9-24-14-3.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 42 SECTION 505, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS



1 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 3.5. (a) The bureau may adopt rules
 2 under IC 4-22-2 concerning the ability of an individual to apply for a
 3 replacement of a driver's license or learner's permit by electronic
 4 service. If rules are adopted under this subsection, the rules must
 5 provide that issuance of a replacement driver's license or learner's
 6 permit by electronic service is subject to the following conditions:

7 (1) A valid computerized image or digital photograph of the
 8 individual must exist within the records of the bureau.

9 (2) The individual must be a citizen of the United States, as
 10 shown in the records of the bureau.

11 (b) An individual applying for a replacement of a driver's license, or
 12 a learner's permit, **driving card, or driving card learner's permit**
 13 must apply in person at a license branch if the individual is not entitled
 14 to apply by mail or by electronic service under rules adopted under
 15 subsection (a).

16 SECTION 39. IC 9-24-18-1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 17 SECTION 527, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 18 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1. (a) An individual, except an
 19 individual exempted under IC 9-24-1-7, who knowingly or intentionally
 20 operates a motor vehicle upon a highway and has never received a
 21 valid driver's license **or driving card** commits a Class C misdemeanor.
 22 However, the offense is a Class A misdemeanor if the individual has a
 23 prior unrelated conviction under this section.

24 (b) In a prosecution under this section, the burden is on the
 25 defendant to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that the
 26 defendant:

27 (1) had been issued a driver's license or permit that was valid; or

28 (2) was operating a Class B motor driven cycle;

29 at the time of the alleged offense. However, it is not a defense under
 30 subdivision (2) if the defendant was operating the Class B motor driven
 31 cycle in violation of IC 9-21-11-12.

32 SECTION 40. IC 9-24-18-6, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 33 SECTION 530, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 34 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 6. In a proceeding to enforce
 35 IC 9-24-1 requiring the operator of a motor vehicle to have a certain
 36 type of driver's license, the burden is on the defendant to prove by a
 37 preponderance of the evidence that the defendant had been issued the
 38 applicable driver's license or permit and that the driver's license **or**
 39 **permit** was valid at the time of the alleged offense.

40 SECTION 41. IC 9-24-18-7.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
 41 SECTION 531, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
 42 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 7.5. (a) A person that knowingly or



1 intentionally counterfeits or falsely reproduces a driver's license:

2 (1) with intent to use the driver's license; or

3 (2) to permit an individual to use the driver's license;

4 commits a Class B misdemeanor.

5 **(b) A person that knowingly or intentionally counterfeits or**
6 **falsely reproduces a driving card:**

7 **(1) with intent to use the driving card; or**

8 **(2) to permit an individual to use the driving card;**

9 **commits a Class B misdemeanor.**

10 SECTION 42. IC 9-24-18-9, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
11 SECTION 532, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
12 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 9. (a) The bureau may establish a
13 driving record for an Indiana resident who does not hold any type of
14 valid driving license **or a driving card**. The driving record shall be
15 established for an unlicensed driver when the bureau receives an
16 abstract of court conviction for the type of conviction that would appear
17 on an official driver's record.

18 (b) If an unlicensed driver applies for and receives any type of
19 driver's license **or a driving card** in Indiana, the individual's driving
20 record as an unlicensed driver shall be recorded on the permanent
21 record file.

22 (c) The bureau shall also certify traffic violation convictions on the
23 driving record of an unlicensed driver who subsequently receives an
24 Indiana driver's license **or driving card**.

25 (d) A driving record established under this section must include the
26 following:

27 (1) The individual's convictions for any of the following:

28 (A) A moving traffic violation.

29 (B) Operating a vehicle without financial responsibility in
30 violation of IC 9-25.

31 (2) Any administrative penalty imposed by the bureau.

32 (3) Any suspensions, revocations, or reinstatements of the
33 individual's driving privileges, license, or permit.

34 (4) If the driving privileges of the individual have been suspended
35 or revoked by the bureau, an entry in the record stating that a
36 notice of suspension or revocation was mailed to the individual by
37 the bureau and the date of the mailing of the notice.

38 (5) Any requirement that the individual may operate only a motor
39 vehicle equipped with a certified ignition interlock device.

40 A driving record may not contain voter registration information.

41 SECTION 43. IC 9-25-7-3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
42 SECTION 545, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS



1 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 3. (a) The bureau shall, upon
 2 request, cancel a bond or return a certificate of insurance, direct the
 3 treasurer of state to return to the person entitled any money or
 4 securities deposited under this article as proof of financial
 5 responsibility, or waive the requirement of filing proof of financial
 6 responsibility in any of the following circumstances:

7 (1) At any time after three (3) years from the date the proof was
 8 required, if during the three (3) year period preceding the request
 9 the person furnishing the proof has not been convicted of an
 10 offense referred to in IC 9-30-4-6.1.

11 (2) If the person on whose behalf the proof was filed dies or the
 12 person becomes permanently incapable of operating a motor
 13 vehicle.

14 (3) If the person who has given proof of financial responsibility
 15 surrenders the person's driver's license **or driving card**,
 16 registration certificates, and registration plates to the bureau. The
 17 bureau may not release the proof if an action for damages upon a
 18 liability referred to in this article is pending, a judgment upon a
 19 liability is outstanding and unsatisfied, or the bureau has received
 20 notice that the person has, within the period of three (3) months
 21 immediately preceding, been involved as a driver in a motor
 22 vehicle accident. An affidavit of the applicant of the nonexistence
 23 of the facts referred to in this subdivision is sufficient evidence of
 24 the nonexistence of the facts in the absence of evidence to the
 25 contrary in the records of the department.

26 (b) Whenever a person to whom proof has been surrendered under
 27 subsection (a)(3) applies for an operator's or chauffeur's license, a
 28 **driving card**, or the registration of a motor vehicle within a period of
 29 three (3) years from the date the proof of financial responsibility was
 30 originally required, the bureau shall reject the application unless the
 31 applicant reestablishes the proof for the remainder of the period.

32 SECTION 44. IC 9-26-1-1.1, AS AMENDED BY P.L.123-2017,
 33 SECTION 1, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
 34 JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1.1. (a) The operator of a motor vehicle involved
 35 in an accident shall do the following:

36 (1) Except as provided in section 1.2 of this chapter, the operator
 37 shall immediately stop the operator's motor vehicle:

38 (A) at the scene of the accident; or

39 (B) as close to the accident as possible;

40 in a manner that does not obstruct traffic more than is necessary.

41 (2) Remain at the scene of the accident until the operator does the
 42 following:



- 1 (A) Gives the operator's name and address and the registration
 2 number of the motor vehicle the operator was driving to any
 3 person involved in the accident.
- 4 (B) Exhibits the operator's driver's license **or driving card** to
 5 any person involved in the accident or occupant of or any
 6 person attending to any vehicle involved in the accident.
- 7 (3) If the accident results in the injury or death of another person,
 8 the operator shall, in addition to the requirements of subdivisions
 9 (1) and (2):
- 10 (A) provide reasonable assistance to each person injured in or
 11 entrapped by the accident, as directed by a law enforcement
 12 officer, medical personnel, or a 911 telephone operator; and
 13 (B) as soon as possible after the accident, immediately give
 14 notice of the accident, or ensure that another person gives
 15 notice of the accident, by the quickest means of
 16 communication to one (1) of the following:
- 17 (i) The local police department, if the accident occurs within
 18 a municipality.
- 19 (ii) The office of the county sheriff or the nearest state police
 20 post, if the accident occurs outside a municipality.
- 21 (iii) A 911 telephone operator.
- 22 (4) If the accident involves a collision with an unattended vehicle
 23 or damage to property other than a vehicle, the operator shall, in
 24 addition to the requirements of subdivisions (1) and (2):
- 25 (A) take reasonable steps to locate and notify the owner or
 26 person in charge of the damaged vehicle or property of the
 27 damage; and
- 28 (B) if after reasonable inquiry the operator cannot find the
 29 owner or person in charge of the damaged vehicle or property,
 30 the operator must contact a law enforcement officer or agency
 31 and provide the information required by this section.
- 32 (b) An operator of a motor vehicle who knowingly or intentionally
 33 fails to comply with subsection (a) commits leaving the scene of an
 34 accident, a Class B misdemeanor. However, the offense is:
- 35 (1) a Class A misdemeanor if the accident results in bodily injury
 36 to another person;
- 37 (2) a Level 6 felony if:
- 38 (A) the accident results in serious bodily injury to another
 39 person; or
- 40 (B) within the five (5) years preceding the commission of the
 41 offense, the operator had a previous conviction of any of the
 42 offenses listed in IC 9-30-10-4(a);



1 (3) a Level 5 felony if the accident results in the death of another
2 person; and

3 (4) a Level 3 felony if the operator knowingly or intentionally
4 fails to stop or comply with subsection (a) during or after the
5 commission of the offense of operating while intoxicated causing
6 serious bodily injury (IC 9-30-5-4) or operating while intoxicated
7 causing death (IC 9-30-5-5).

8 (c) An operator of a motor vehicle who commits an offense under
9 subsection (b)(1), (b)(2), (b)(3), or (b)(4) commits a separate offense
10 for each person whose bodily injury or death is caused by the failure of
11 the operator of the motor vehicle to comply with subsection (a).

12 (d) A court may order terms of imprisonment imposed on a person
13 convicted of more than one (1) offense described in subsection (b)(1),
14 (b)(2), (b)(3), or (b)(4) to run consecutively. Consecutive terms of
15 imprisonment imposed under this subsection are not subject to the
16 sentencing restrictions set forth in IC 35-50-1-2(c) through
17 IC 35-50-1-2(d).

18 SECTION 45. IC 9-26-1-1.5, AS AMENDED BY P.L.188-2015,
19 SECTION 100, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
20 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 1.5. (a) If:

21 (1) the operator of a motor vehicle is physically incapable of
22 determining the need for or rendering assistance to any injured or
23 entrapped person as required under section 1.1(a)(3) of this
24 chapter;

25 (2) there is another occupant in the motor vehicle at the time of
26 the accident who is:

27 (A) at least:

28 (i) fifteen (15) years of age and holds a learner's permit
29 issued under IC 9-24-7-1, ~~or a driver's license issued under~~
30 ~~IC 9-24-11, or a driving card issued under IC 9-24-3.5, or~~
31 **a driving card learner's permit issued under**
32 **IC 9-24-7-1(b); or**

33 (ii) eighteen (18) years of age; and

34 (B) capable of determining the need for and rendering
35 reasonable assistance to injured or entrapped persons as
36 provided in section 1.1(a)(3) of this chapter; and

37 (3) the other occupant in the motor vehicle knows that the
38 operator of the motor vehicle is physically incapable of
39 determining the need for or rendering assistance to any injured or
40 entrapped person;

41 the motor vehicle occupant referred to in subdivisions (2) and (3) shall
42 immediately determine the need for and render reasonable assistance



1 to each person injured or entrapped in the accident as provided in
2 section 1.1(a)(3) of this chapter.

3 (b) If there is more than one (1) motor vehicle occupant to whom
4 subsection (a) applies, it is a defense to a prosecution of one (1) motor
5 vehicle occupant under subsection (a) that the defendant reasonably
6 believed that another occupant of the motor vehicle determined the
7 need for and rendered reasonable assistance as required under
8 subsection (a).

9 (c) A person who knowingly or intentionally violates this section
10 commits a Class C misdemeanor.

11 SECTION 46. IC 9-30-3-15, AS AMENDED BY P.L.198-2016,
12 SECTION 595, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
13 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 15. In a proceeding, prosecution, or
14 hearing where the prosecuting attorney must prove that the defendant
15 had a prior conviction for an offense under this title, the relevant
16 portions of a certified computer printout or electronic copy made from
17 the records of the bureau are admissible as prima facie evidence of the
18 prior conviction. However, the prosecuting attorney must establish that
19 the document identifies the defendant by the defendant's driver's
20 license **or driving card permit** number or by any other identification
21 method utilized by the bureau.

22 SECTION 47. IC 9-30-5-18, AS ADDED BY P.L.125-2012,
23 SECTION 342, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
24 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 18. (a) If:

25 (1) a criminal proceeding for driving while intoxicated under
26 IC 9-30-5 is deferred under IC 12-23-5-1 through IC 12-23-5-9;

27 or

28 (2) a child alleged to be a delinquent child based upon the child's
29 violation of IC 9-30-5 voluntarily attends or is ordered by the
30 court under IC 31-37 to attend an alcohol and drug services
31 program;

32 the court, within ten (10) days after the defendant or child begins the
33 program, shall forward to the bureau a certified abstract of program
34 enrollment.

35 (b) The abstract must state the following:

36 (1) The defendant's or child's name, address, date of birth, and
37 driver's license **or driving card** number.

38 (2) The name and location of the alcohol and drug services
39 program that the defendant or child is attending.

40 SECTION 48. IC 9-30-6-4.3, AS AMENDED BY P.L.13-2013,
41 SECTION 40, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
42 JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 4.3. (a) This section applies only to a person



1 whose motor vehicle has been seized under IC 34-24-1-1(a)(15).

2 (b) If the bureau receives an order from a court recommending that
3 the bureau not register a motor vehicle in the name of a person whose
4 motor vehicle has been seized under IC 34-24-1-1(a)(15), the bureau
5 may not register a motor vehicle in the name of the person whose motor
6 vehicle has been seized until the person proves that the person
7 possesses a driver's license **or driving card** with valid driving
8 privileges.

9 SECTION 49. IC 35-52-9-36, AS ADDED BY P.L.169-2014,
10 SECTION 2, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS [EFFECTIVE
11 JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 36. IC 9-24-18-1 defines a ~~crime~~ **crimes**
12 concerning driver's licenses **and driving cards**.

13 SECTION 50. IC 35-52-9-37.5, AS ADDED BY P.L.188-2015,
14 SECTION 153, IS AMENDED TO READ AS FOLLOWS
15 [EFFECTIVE JULY 1, 2018]: Sec. 37.5. IC 9-24-18-7.5 defines a
16 ~~crime~~ **crimes** concerning driver's licenses **and driving cards**.

17 SECTION 51. [EFFECTIVE UPON PASSAGE] **(a) The bureau of**
18 **motor vehicles shall adopt rules under IC 4-22-2, including**
19 **emergency rules in the manner provided under IC 4-22-2-37.1,**
20 **necessary to implement issuance and administration of driving**
21 **cards under IC 9-24-3.5, as added by this act, and driving card**
22 **learner's permits under IC 9-24-7-1, as amended by this act.**

23 **(b) This SECTION expires July 1, 2019.**

24 SECTION 52. An emergency is declared for this act.

